
BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

COSTCO CORP. DBA COSTCO 
PHARMACY #454 
115 Technology Drive 
Irvine, CA 92618 

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 41247 

LAURA CODY MORRIS 
215 Deinenger Circle 
Corona, CA 92880 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 

Respondents. 

Case No. 5324 

OAH No. 2015081057 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER FOR PUBLIC 
REPROVAL (LAURA CODY MORRIS) 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order for Public Reproval is 

hereby adopted by the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision 

in this matter. 

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00p.m. on September 23, 2016. 

It is so ORDERED on August 24, 2016. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D. 
Board President 



D
California State Board of Pharmacy 
1625 N. Market Blvd, N219, Sacramento, CA 95834 
Phone: (916) 574-7900 
Fax: (916) 574-8618 
www.pharmacy.ca.gov 

BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

GOVERNOR EDMUND G. BROWN JR. 

August 24, 2016 

Laura Cody Morris 
215 Deinenger Circle 
Corona, CA 92880 

Re: 	 LETTER OF PUBLIC REPROV AL 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

Laura Cody Morris, et al., Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 


Dear Ms. Morris: 

On April13, 2015, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, State of 
California, filed an Accusation against your Pharmacist License. The Accusation alleged that you 
engaged in unprofessional conduct as follows: 

(1) When you failed to comply with your corresponding responsibility to ensure that 
controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate medical purpose in violation of Health & 
Safety Code section 11153(a). 

(2) When you dispensed controlled substance prescriptions with significant errors, 
omissions, irregularities, uncertainties, ambiguities or alterations in violation of California Code 
of Regulations, title 16, sections 176l(a) and (b). 

(3) When you engaged in the activities set forth above in violation of Business and 
Professions Code section 4301. 

Accordingly, in resolution of this matter under the authority provided under Business and 
Professions Code section 495, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs issues 
this letter of public repro val. 

Sincerely, 

VIRGINIA HEROLD 

Executive Officer 
Board of Pharmacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 

http:www.pharmacy.ca.gov
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KAMALA D; HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
GREGORY J. SALUTE 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
DESIREE I. KELLOGG 
'Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 126461 


600 West Broadway, Suite 1.1800 

San Diego, CA 921 01 

P.O. Box 85266 

San Diego, CA 92186-5266 

Telephone: (619) 645~2996 

Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 


Attorheys.for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFF'AIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

COSTCO CORP. DBA COSTCO 

PHARMACY #454 

115. Technology Drive 
Irvine, CA 92618 

Pharmacy Permit No. PRY 4li47 

LAURA CODY MORRIS . 
 215 Deinenger Circle 
Corona, CA 92880 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 

Respondents. 

Case No. 5324 

OAH No. 2015081057 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER FOR PUBLIC 
REPROVAL (LAURA CODY MORRIS) 

[Bus. & Prof. Code § 495] 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. · VIRGINIA HEROLD (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of 


Pharmacy. She brought tbis action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter 


by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Desiree I. Kellogg, Deputy 


Attorney General. 
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· 2. .Respondent Costco Corp .. dba Costc.o Pharmacy #454 (Respondent) is represented in 

this proceeding by attorneys Helaine W. Heydemrum and Brandie Gasper of Locke Lord LLP, 

whose address is: Ill South Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606 and 300 South Grru1d Avenue, 

Suite 2600, Los Angeles, CA 90071. 

3. On or about November 12, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Pem1itNo. 

PHY 41247 to Costco Corp. dba Costco Pharmacy #454. The Pharmacy Permit was in full force 

and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5324 and will expire on 

October I, 2016, unless renewed. 

4. On or about August 19, 1993, the Board pfPharmacy issued Pharmacist License 

Number RPH 46609 to Laura Cody Morris (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was il). full 

· force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein ru1d will expire on June 30, 

2017, unless renewed. 


JURISDICTION 


5. Accusation No. 5324 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Deparhnent of 

Consumer Affah's and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation and all other 

statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on April 13, 2015. 

Respondent timely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. A copy of Accusation 

No. 5324 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

ADVISEMENTAND WAIVERS 

6. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

charges and allegati~ns in Accusation No. 5324 .. Respondent has also carefully read, fully 

cjiscussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinru·y 

Order for Public Reproval. 

7. Respondent is fully aware of her legal rights h1 this matter, including the right to a 

hearing on the charges ru1d allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross~exfl\nine 

the witnesses against her; the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right 

to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 
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·

· 

· 

.

docU111ents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other 

rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

8. Respondent vo!m1tarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

every right set forth above. 

CULPABILITY 

9. Respondent U11derstands and agrees that the charges and allegations in Accusation 

No.' 5324, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon her Pharmacist 

License.· 

10. For the purpose of resolving the Accusation without the expense and uncertainty of 

further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at a hearing, Complainant could establish a factual 

basis for the charges in the Accusation, and that Respondent hereby gives up its right to contest 
. ' ' . 

tl10se charges. 

·11. Respondent agrees tlmt.her Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and they agree 

to be bound by fue Disciplinary Order below. 

CONTINGENCY 

12. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent 

lmderstands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pha!macy may 

co111111unicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

or participation by Respondent or her counsel. By signing tl1e stipulation, Respondent 

understands and agrees that she may not withdraw its agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation 

prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation 

 as its Decision .and Order, tl1e Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order for Public Reproval 

shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action 

between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by havin& 

considered this matter. 

13. The parties U11derstand and agree that P()[iable DocU111ent Format (PDF) and facsimile 

copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Ordet for Public Repro val, including 
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Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and 

effect as the originals. 

14. This Stipulated Settlement and. Disciplinary Order for Public Reproval is intended by 

the parties to be an integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment 

of their agreement. It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 

understandings, discussions, negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated 

Settlement and Disciplinary Order for Public Reproval may not be altered, amended, modified, 

supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a writing executed by an authorized representative 

of each ofthe parties. 

15. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 


the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following 


Disciplinary Order: 


DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 issued to Respondent 

Laura Cody Morris (Respondent) shall be publicly reproved by the Board of Pharmacy under 

Business and Professions Code section 495. The letter issued to Respondent shall be in 

substantially the same form as the letter attached as Exhibit B to this stipulation. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent shall comply with tenus and conditions as 

set for the below. ~ny violation of the terms and conditions .shall constitute unprofessional · 

conduct and grounds for further disciplinary action. 

1. Within sixty (60) days of the effective" date of this decision, Respondent s):tall 

submit to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of remedial 

education related to corresponding responsibility ·(preferably the remedial education course which 

Costco Corporation's Pharmacy Regional Managers will be taking). The program ofremedial 

education shall consist of at least six (6) hours, which shall be completed in-person and within 

one.(!) year.ofthe effective date of this decision, at Respondent's or her employer's expense. 

Failure to timely submit or complete the approved remedial education shall. be considered a 

violation of this agreement. Respondent shall submit written proof in .a form acceptable to the 
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boatd, of such .successful cmnpletion of remedial. odu~ation to .the bolr(d or its designee. 

AC?EPT.¢J!!CE 

I ha.ve oaief).llly read the above Stipulateq Settlement and Disciplinary Order for Public . 

R(lpro~at a,nd'har.~ fully cUse\lsse.<) it wil!t pzy attom~ys, Helaine W. Heydemann and Brandle 

Oa~per. l understand the'stipulatlou and. the effect it will have pn my Phru:mac!st License. · l enter 

lnto this Stipulated 'Settlement and Disciplinary 'Order for Public Reproval voluntatily, 

k:n,owingly, and lntelligentl¥,, and agre¢ to. be bound by the Decisiot;t and Order oftho Boru:d of 

l?h.armacy: 

DATED! G)/lo / 1(4 

l have read md fully. discussed with Respondent taura C0dy Morris th.c terms and 

®ndi\ions ali.d. ot\).er matters.contained ·in rlm above Stipulated Settlement and Pisclplinary Order 

$0dlubli~ ReJ,:»QV!Il. I approve its foM.and o(lntent. 

DATED: ft.{t7-/~(Jil. )/;.1~ ~,./'""""~~~-,.....--~-
, I }!ELAINE W.~lS'fM:i.\,~

Attorney for Rosponde11t. 
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STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (5324) 


ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order for Public Reproval is hereby 

· respectfully submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of 

ConsU111er Affairs. 

DATBD:~~~(t~~~U~~-- Respectfully submitted, 

ttorney General 



Exhibit A 


Accusation No. 5324 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 

Attorney General of California 

GREGORY J. SALUTE 

Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

DESIREE l. KELLOGG · 

Deputy Attorney General 

State Bar No. 126461 


110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 

San Diego, CA 92101 ' 

P.O. Box 85266 

San Diego,.CA 92186-5266 

Telephone: (619) 6Li5-2996 

Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 


Atrorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

COSTCO CORP. DB.A COSTCO 

PHARMACY #454 

115 Technology Drive 

Irvine, CA 92618 


Pharmacy Permit No. PHY41247 

LAURA CODY MORRIS 
2900 Bakers St. 
Costa Mesa, CA 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 


Respondents. 

C~se No. 5324 


ACCUSATION 

Complainant aJ!eges: · 

PARTIES 

1, Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity 

as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Depattment of Consumer Affairs. 

2. 0\1 or about November 12, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit 

Number PHY 41247 to Costco Corp., doing business as Costco Pharmacy #454 (Respondent 

1 

Accusation 
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Costco Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the 

charges brought herein and will expire on October I, 2015, unless renewed. 

. 3. On or about August 19, 1993, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License 

Number RPH 46609 to Laura Cody Morris (Respondent Laura Cody Monis). The Pharmacist 

License was in full force and effect at ali times relevant to the charges brought herein and will 

expire on June 30, 2015, unless renewed. 

JUffiSDICTION 

4. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharn1acy (Board), Department of 

Consumer Affairs, undei' the authodty of the following laws. All section references are to the 

·Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

5. · Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both 


the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances 


Act [Health & Safety Code,§ 11000 et seq.]. 


6. Section 4300(a)ofthe Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be 


suspended or revoked. 


7. Section 4300.1 ~f the Code states: · 

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or su&pension of a board-issued license 

by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court oflaw, the · 

placeincnt of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a 

licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any 

investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render 

a decision suspending or revoking the license. 


STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS 

8. Section 43 0I. of the Code states in pertinent part: 

The bohJ:d si1all take action against any holcler of a license who is guilty of 
. t

·' 

2 

Accusation 

uupro:tessional concltict or whose license has been procured ·by ii·aud or 
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is 

not limited to, any of the following: 


(i) The violation of an)' of the statutes of this state, Ol" any other state, or of the 

United StatesTegulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs .... 




5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

1 

2 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 I 
3 I 

Accusation. I 

, (o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 
abettmg the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or.te.rrn of this chapter 
or of the applicable federal ~nd state Jaws and regulations governing pharmacy, 
mc!udmg regulatiOnS estabhsl1ed by the board or any other state or federal regulatory 
agency, 

9. Section 4113(c) of the Code states: 

The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance 
with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy. 

10, Health and Safety Code section 11!53(a) states: 

A prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitimate 

medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her 

professional practice, The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispe.nsing of 

controUed substances is upon the prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding 

responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the prescription. Except as 

authorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions:(!) an order 

purporting to' be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course of 

professional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an 

acldict or habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of· 

professional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment program, for the 

purpose of providing the user with controlled substances, sufficient to keep him or 

her comfortable by maintaining customary use. 


11, Section 1 707.3 of title 16, California Code ofRegulations states; 

. Prior to consultatiot1 as set 'forth in secti.on 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a 

patient's drug therapy and medication record·before each prescription drug is 

delivered, The review shall include screening for severe potential dmg thererpy 

problems. · 


12, Section 1761 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states: 

(a) No pharmacist s)lall compound or dispense any prescription which contains 

any significant error, omission, in·egularity, tmcertainty, ambiguity or alteration. 

Upon receipt of any suchprescription, the pharimicist shall contact the prescriber to 

obtain the information needed to validate the prescription, · 


· (b) Even after conferring with the prescriber, a pharn:lacist shall not compound 

or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist knows or has 

objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a legitimate 

medical purpose. · 


I 

http:secti.on
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Accusation 

COST RECOVERY 

13. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

administrative. law judge to direct a licentiate found to have com.mitted a violation or violations of 

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of the case. 

DRUGS 

14. Am bien is the brand name for zolpidem, .a Schedule lV controlled substance pursuant 

to Health and Safety. Code section II 057(c1) and a dangerous·.drug pursuan.t to Btisiness and 
' . . ' " 

Professions Code section 4022. 

1S. · Klonopin is the brand name for clonazepam, a Schedule IV controlled substance 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section II 057(b)(7) and a dangerous drug pursuant to 

Business and'Professions Code se.ction 4022. 

!6. M.S Contui is the bi·and name for morphine ·sulfate, a Schedule ll controlled substance 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section llOSS(b)(l)(L) and a dangerous dntg pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 4022. 

17. Oxycontin'and OxylR are brand names for oxycodone or oxycodone ER resp.ectively 

and are Schedule II control.l<;d substances pursuant to Hea[th.and Safety, Code section 

·11 055(b)(I)(M) and dangerous drugs pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022. . ' - . 

18. Percocet is the brand name for acetaminophen/oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled 

substal1ce pursuant to Health and Safety Code section.l1055(b)(l)(L) and a dangerous drug 

pursuant to Busit1ess and Professions Code section 4022. 
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19. Soma is the brand name·for carisporodol, a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 1 1055(b)(l)(L) and a dangerous drug piusuant to Business and 

Professions Code.section 4022. 

20. Vicodin/Norco is the brand name for acetaminophen/hydrocodone, a Schedule 1ll 

c.ontrolled s<>bstance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11 056(e)(5) and a dangerous 

dmg pw:suimt to B<>siness and Professions Code section4022. 
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21. Xat1ax is the brand .namefor alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant 

tp Health and Safety Code section 11 057(d)(1) and a dangero)ls drug pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section4022. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

22. From November 17, 1995 through February 21, 2014, Respondent Laura Morris was 

the Pharmacist-in-Charge of Respondent Costco Pharmacy. 

23. Effective 2000 through. October 2009, Respondent Costco Pharmacy implemented a 

policy setting forth the parameters for its pharmacists to dispense controlled substances to 

patients. This policy and procedure provided that Respondent Costco Pharmacy could only 

support its pharmacist's decision to decline to fill a prescription for controlled substances if it was 

"based on sound medical reasoning and the appropriate communication with the prescriber and 

the patient has owurred." 

·· 24. Efi:"ective November 28, 2009 through July 11, 2012, Respondent Costco Pharmacy 

implemented a revised policy and procedure setting forth the parameters for its pharmacists to 

dispense controlled substances to patients. This policy and procedure provided that Respondent 

Costen Pharmacy would only support a phat~acist's decisl.on to deny filling a prescription for 

controlled substances if that decis~on was reviewed and approved by a Regional Phmmacy 

Supervisor. The policy and procedure further provided that "only in extreme cases and only upon 

collaboration with your Regional Pharmacy Supervisor will refusal of pharmacy service be 

considered ... Prior to 1:efusing to ftl!. a prescription OR denying any immediate or future phannacy 

service for suspicion of fraud, the pharmacist on duty or pharmacy manager must contact the 

Regional Pharmacy Supervisor ... There must be no doubt that a prescription is fraudulent prior to 

taking a11Y action or refusing pharmacy service and then only with the proper approvals .. .If need 

be,.dispense enough oftl~e niedication until the prescriber can be contacted to conJ:irm fraud." 

25. Eff~ctive July 12,2012 through June 3, 2013, Respondent Costco Pharmacy· 


implemented a 1·evised policy and procedure (Controlled Substance Dispensing Policy) setting 


· 


forth the parameters for its pharmacists to dispense coni.Tolled substances to patients. The revised 

policy ar1d procedure provided that"[w'jhen presented with ·a controlled substance pniscription, 

http:decisl.on
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Costco pharmacists must balance providing a high level of member service with ensuring that the 

prescription is valid and issued llJl' n legitimate medical purpose. Each conlrollecl substmwe 

prescription should be evaluated for 'when to :till, when to question, when to delay and when to 

ref\.lse.. '" The policy and procedure still required the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor's review and 

approval before the :fl.Jling of a controlled substance prescription ·could be denied. In order to 

deny filling tl controlled substance prescription, a pharmacist bad to show that there was "clear 

evidence or sl)(fwient reason to suspect a torgery or otherwise invalid prescdption" except if there 

was "cohfirmcd evidence of overlapping ·therapy" or ''confin:nation of a fraudulent prescription." 

The policy and proceclure :flnther provided that "[w]ith few exceptions (see Controlled Substance 

Dispensing Policy) collaboratim1 with your Regional Pharmtrcy Supervisor is necessary before 

reii.1sal of your phannacy service ... There must be no doubt that a prescription is ii·auc\ulent prior 

to. tt\.kin.g any action or refLtsing pharmacy services." 

26. From 2000 through May 2013, the Regionall'harmacy Supervisor made the ultinmte 

decision as to whether to dispense a controlled substance prescription. A pharmacist could also 

not contact law enforce.ment about a questionable controlled substance prescription without prior 

approval and knowledge of the Regional. Pharmacy Supervisor and Warehouse Management. 

Pharmacists were disciplined for: violating these policies and procedures. 

27. As a result of these polides and procedures, Respondents impeded,phal11Jacists from 

exercising their professional judgment to fill controlled substance pxescriptions and to fulfill tl1eir 

conesponcling responsibility to ensure that controlled substance prescriptions were issned for 

legitimate me(lical purposes. These policies and proeeclures f'Lirther allow<:dJor the dispensing, 

filling and furnishing of drugs without legitimate medical purposes by Respondents and for a lack 

of research or verifying if prescriptions were written for a legitimate medical purpose before 

filling them, as discussed in the following paragraphs. 

28. From May 15, 2007 through August 25, 2010, Respondents filled and dispensed !56 

controlled substances prescriptions wrincn by Dr. LT. The nverag~ age of Dr. L.'.l".'s patients was 

29 years old. The majority ofthesc prescriptions wexe paid in cash. Patients traveled an t1verage 

of33 miles h-om Dr. L.T.'s offices to Respondent Costco Pharmacy. Dr. LT. was not certifted as 

6 
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I 

a pain management pro~ider or affiliated with the American Board of Physical Medicine and 

Reh!tbilitation. There was no stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr. L.T. 's prescriptions were 

written for an initial therapy that began with high doses of anti-anxiety medications without 

evidence of prior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach. 

29. On February 3, 20!2, aSecond Amended Accusation was :filed against Dr. L.T. for 

among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, repeated negligent acts, issuing controlled 

substances prescriptions for an illegitimate purpose, making and signing false documents, 

unprofessional conduct for dispensing, prescribing and fi.unisbing dangerous drugs without an 

appropriate prior examination and medical indication to patients, excessive prescribing and 

committing dishonest/corrupt acts. Effective March 14, 2012, the Osteopathic Medical Board of' 

California accepted the surrender of Dr. L.T.'s osteopathic physician and surgeon certificate. 

30. From February 2, 2006 through July 5, 2006, Respondents .filled and dispensed 20. 

prescriptions written by Dr. V.L. The average age of Dr. V.L.'s patients was 24 yetrrs oid. Dr. 

V.L.'s prescriptions were Wtitten for an excessive quantity of controlled S\lbstances (i.e., 

hydrocodone/APAP 10/325mg'with the·average number of tablets equaling 180) and tmusually 

high dosages or strength (i.e., 40-50 mg ofhydrocodone and 1-LS mg of Tylenol per day). 

Patients traveled an average of 17 miles from Dr. V.L 's offices to Respondent Costco Pharmacy. 

Dr.. V.L. was not certified as a pain management provide or affiliated with the American Board of 

Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 

31. On June 15, 2009, in the United States Disttict Court for the Central District of 

California, Dr. V.L. pleaded guilty to 15 counts charging violations ofTitle 18 U.S.C. § 841 

(a)(l), intentional and unlawful distribution md dispensing of Schedule II and III controlled .. 

substances outside the scope of professional practice. Effective October 1, 2010, the Medical 

Board of California adopted a Decision revolting his license for convictions of crimes that are 

substantially related to the practice of medicine, violating federal laws regulating dangerous drugs 

or controlled substances and engaging in acts involving dishonesty 01' corruption. 

, 32. · From July 27, 2005 through November 19, 2008, Respondents filled and dispensed 47 

prescriptions written by Dr. C.G. The average age of Dr. C. G.'s patients was 26 years old. 
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Patients tTaveled an average of27miles from Dr. e.G.'s offices to Respondent Costco Pharmacy. 


Dr. e.G. was not certified as a pain management provider or affiliated with the .American Board 


of Physical Medicine and Rehab.ilitation. There was no stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr. 


C.G.'s prescriptions were written for an initial therapy that began with high doses of anti-anxiety 


medications without evidence ofprior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach. 


33. On or about June 11, 200~, Dr. C. G. was convicted upon her plea of nolo contendere 

in a cri1uinal proceeding filed in Los Angeles County Superior Court to the felonies of unlawfully 

prescribing controlled substm1ces, in violation ofHealth and Safety Code section 11153(a) and 

prescribing or administering prescription drugs to an addict or habitual user, in violation of Health 

and Safety Code section11156. On or about September 12,2008, a First Amended Accusation 


was filed against Dr. C.G. for among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, repeated 


negligent acts, prescribing to Sll addict, prescribing without appropriate exmriinatian, failure to 


maintain adequate and accurate recordS and excessive prescribing. Effective March 23, 2009, Dr. 

C'. G.'s physician and surgeon's certiftcate was placed an probation for seven years by the Medical 

l}oru:d of California. 


FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Failing to Comply with Corresponding Responsibility 


for Legitimate Controlled Substance Prescdptions) 


34. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301 G), for 


violating Health and Safety Code section 11153(a), in that they failed.to comply with their 

corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate 

medical pUlJ)OSe when Respondents fumished prescriptions for contro~led substances even though 

"red flags" were present, indicating those prescriptions were nat issued far a legitimate medical 

purpose, as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 33 above, which are incorporated herein by 

reference. 
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Dispensing Controlled Substance Prescriptions with Significant Errors, Omissions, 


. Irregularities, Uncertainties, Ambiguities or Alterations) 


35. Respondents are subject to disciplinat)' action under Code section 4301(o), for 

violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, sections r76l(a) and (b) in that they dispensed 

prescriptions for controlled substances, which contained significant errors, omissions, 

irregularities, tmcertainties, ambiguities or alterations, as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 33 

above, which are incorpor·ated herein by reference. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DI§CIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct) 

36. Responde11ts are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301 for 

unprofessional cond1.1ct in that they engaged in the activities described in pm·agraphs 22 through 

33 above, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

DISCIPLINARY CONSIQERATIONS 

37. . To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Costeo 

Pharmacy, Compla:inant alleges that on May 17,2012, the Board issued Citation ntUilber CI 2011 

49350 against Respondent Costco Phannacy for violating Califo,·nia Code of Regulations, title 

16, section 1764 and Civil Code section 56.) 0 for the unauthorized disclosure of prescription and 

medical il;lforrnation. The Board issued a fine which Respondent paid. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the.matters herein alleged,. ' ' ' 

and that following the hearing, the Board ofPhatmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 41247 issued to Costco 


Corp., doing business as Costoo Pharmacy #454; 


2. Revoking or su~pending Pharmacist License Number RPH 46609 issued to Laura 


Cody Morris; . 
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3. Ordering Costco Corp., doing busii1ess as Costco Pharmacy #454 and Laura Cody 

Morris to pay the Board ofPham1acy the reasonable costs ofthe investigation and enforcement of 

this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3; 

4. Taking such other and fcn'ther action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: 	 ..3 ~~~ ); s--. 
-~~~.~~.~~~----	 ~~ .--J,,.6;G~!N~I~E~R;,O~I::;JD~:;::_· 

Executiv rcer 

-

Boar·d of Phannacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

802014708110 

71 024298.cloc 


I 




Exhibit B 


Letter of Public Reproval 




Date:----~-----

·Laura Cody Morris 
215 Deinenger Circle 
Corona, CA 92880 

Re: 	 LETTER OF PUBLIC REPROVAL 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

Laura Cody Morris, eta!., Pharmacist License No. RPH 46609 


Dear Ms. Morris: 

On April 13, 2015, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,. State of 
California, filed an Accusation against your Pharmacist License: The Accusation alleged that you 
.engaged in unprofessio!lal conduct as follows: 

(1) When you failed to comply with your corresponding responsibility to ensure that 

controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate medical purpose in violation of Health & 

Safety Code section11153(a). 


(2) When you dispensed controlled substance prescriptions with significant errors,. 
omissions; irregularities, uncertainties, ambiguities or alterations in violation of California Code 
ofRegl)lations, title 16, sections 1761(a) and (b). 

(3) When you engaged in the activities set forth above in violation ofBusiness and 

Professions Code section4301. 


Accor>[ingly, in resolution of this matter under tl1e autl1ority provided under Business and 
Professions Code section 495, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs issues 
this letter ofpublic reprov8.!. 

Sincereiy, 

VIRGINIA HEROLD 

Executive Officer · 
.Board of Pharmacy 
Department ofConsnmer Affairs 




